
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

2nd REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse 

400 West State Street | Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room | 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, October 24, 2019 

6:00 p.m.  
 

1. Call to Order  .................................................................................. Chairman Frank Haney 
 
2. Agenda Updates  ............................................................................. Chairman Frank Haney 
 
3. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
4. Invocation .............................................................................. Board Member John Butitta 
 
5. Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None 
B. Proclamations – None  
C. Presentations – Region 1 Planning Council: Trustee Program (Michael Dunn Jr. & Eric 

Setter) 
  

6. Public Comment ................................................................................. Registered Speakers 
Members of the public may address the Board by submitting their request no later than 2 hours prior 
to the start of the meeting. Contact www.wincoil.us or (815) 319-4225 for guidelines. 
 

7. Board Member Correspondence ............................................................... Board Members 
 

8. Chairman’s Report .......................................................................... Chairman Frank Haney                
• Trustee Program Agent 
• Barber Colman/Alternative location for Advanced Technology Center 
• Thank you to Caucus Chairs 
• Disclosure 

1. County designee to WINGIS Board: Chris Dornbush (on-going) 
2. County designee to RMAP Board: Carlos Molina (replacing Joe Vanderwerff) 
3. RACVB County Board Liaison: Dan Fellars 
4. RACVB County Staff Designee: Tiana McCall (on-going) 

 

http://www.wincoil.us/


www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

9. County Administrator’s Report ..................... Interim County Administrator Steve Chapman 
 

10. Department Head Updates……………………………………………………………………Department Heads 
 

11. Unfinished Business ........................................................................ Chairman Frank Haney 
A. 911 Update 
B. Capital Improvement Plan Update 
C. Closed session committee minutes: May 2 
D. Cherry Valley TIF Report 

 
12. New Business………………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Frank Haney 

A. Recommendation on Project E - $150,000 from Host Fees. Carry-over from FY ’19 
(Refer for Economic Development Committee) 

B. Board Appointment, Otter Creek Lake Utility District 
1. Reappoint Edwin Herrman, Davis, IL, October 2019-October 2024  

(Resume attached) 
 

13. Standing Committee Reports .......................................................... Chairman Frank Haney 
 

A. Operations & Administrative Committee ............. Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with Region 1 Planning Council to 

Act as the County of Winnebago’s Agent in the Operation of a Delinquent Tax Program 
3. Ordinance Amending Chapter 70 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances 

Related to Waste Haulers and Solid Waste to be laid over 
4. Resolution Authorizing the Establishment of Winnebago County Community Mental 

Health Board 
5. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute Agreement with 

National Able Network    
 

B. Finance Committee…………………………………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Resolution Authorizing an Increase in the Salary of the Winnebago County 

Public Defender    
2. Resolution Authorizing Execution of Intergovernmental Cooperation 

Agreement for the Operation and Funding of the Winnebago County 
Emergency Telephone System 

3. Resolution Authorizing the Settlement of Pending Litigation 
                                      

C. Zoning Committee ...................................................... Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. SU-07-19 A Special Use Permit for a Retreat Center (on a +/-25 acre zoning lot) 
in    the AG, Agriculture Priority District for property that is commonly known as 
10076 Fish Hatchery Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Burritt Township, District 1 to 
be laid over 
2. Committee Report 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

 
D. Economic Development Committee ................................. Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. State’s Attorney’s Presentation on Cannabis Tax 
3. Ordinance Amending the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances by the addition of 

Article VI to Chapter 78, Imposing a County Cannabis Retailer’s Occupation Tax to be 
laid over 

4. Ordinance Amending the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances to Provide for Video 
Gaming as Allowed by the Illinois Video Gaming Act to be laid over 

5. Resolution Abating Property Taxes for Ten (10) Years on Real Estate Commonly known 
as the Magic Waters Waterpark located at 7820 North Cherryvale Boulevard, Cherry 
Valley, Illinois owned by Rockford Park District (“RPD”) and Legally Described in Exhibit 
“A” Attached Hereto 

 
E. Personnel and Policies Committee…………………………..David Fiduccia, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Fixing County Holiday Schedule for 2020 
3. Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of 

Rockford for Animal Services 
4. Resolution to Adopt the Annual 1,000 Hour Standard for IMRF Participation 
5. Resolution to Approve Truck Purchase for River Bluff Nursing Home 

 
E. Public Works Committee…………………………………….……Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

 
D. Public Safety Committee………………..……………………….Aaron Booker, Committee Chairman 

 
14.  Announcements & Communications……………………………………………….Clerk Lori Gummow 
 A. Correspondence (see packet) 

 
 
15. Consent Agenda…………………………………………….…………………………..Chairman Frank Haney 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Approval of September 26, 2019 minutes 
C. Layover of October 10, 2019 minutes 
D. Bills 

 
16.  Adjournment……………………………………………………………..……………..Chairman Frank Haney 

 
 

 
Next Meeting: Thursday, November 14, 2019 



CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT 



 

ADMINISTRATOR’S 
REPORT 



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: October 21, 2019 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Edwin Herrman of Rockford, Illinois, to serve a 5-year term from October 2019-October 2024 
on the Otter Creek Lake Utility District Board. 
 

About the Otter Creek Lake Utility District 
Location:  1284 Lake Summerset Road, Davis, IL 61019 
Service Description:  Multi County water and sewer utility that serves the Lake Summerset 

subdivision in Winnebago and Stephenson County 

Board Composition:  Three trustees, appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Public corporation existing pursuant to the Illinois Public Water District Act 
70 ILCS 3705/0.01 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Charges for services for water and sewer 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 









 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 















































 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 











































 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 October 24, 2019  
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......……………...…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

         PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 
         

  TO BE LAID OVER:  

  

   TO BE VOTED ON:  NONE 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

2.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; 
not intended as a public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, November 13, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of     
     the County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting 

is tentatively scheduled for Monday, November 25, 2019, at 5:00 p.m. in Room 303 of 
the County Administration Building. 
 

 
 
   

 

 

1. SU-07-19 A Special Use Permit for a Retreat Center (on a +/- 25 acre zoning lot) in the 
AG, Agricultural Priority District, requested by Illinois Vipassana Association, Property 
Owner, represented by Paul Stenzel, Attorney, for property that is commonly known as 
10076 Fish Hatchery Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Burritt Township. 
PIN: 10-16-100-019 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: N/A 

 ZBA Recommends:  APPROVAL w/ ZBA CONDITIONS (7-0) 
 ZC Recommends:   TBD 

   



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



Sponsored by:  Jas Bilich  County Board Meeting: October 24, 2019 
 

ORDINANCE 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMMITTEE 
 

2019 CO_______ 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY THE ADDITION OF 

ARTICLE VI TO CHAPTER 78, IMPOSING A COUNTY CANNABIS 
RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois has the authority to adopt ordinances and 
to promulgate rules and regulations that pertain to its government and affairs and that 
protect the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois County 
Cannabis Retailers’ Occupation Tax Law, 55 ILCS 5/5-1006.8 (Act); and 
 
WHEREAS, this Ordinance is intended to impose the tax authorized by the Act 
providing for a county cannabis retailers’ occupation tax which will be collected by the 
Illinois Department of Revenue; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Board of Winnebago 
County, Illinois as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this 
Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2.  Adoption of Tax.  Chapter 78 of the Winnebago County Code of 
Ordinances of the County of Illinois (“Winnebago County Code”) is hereby amended by 
the addition of Article VI to read as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE VI.  County Cannabis Retailers’ Occupation Tax. 
 
1. Tax imposed; Rate.  
(a) A tax is hereby imposed upon all persons engaged in the business of selling cannabis, 
other than cannabis purchased under the Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot 
Program Act, at retail in the County of Winnebago, Illinois, at the rate of 3.75% of the 
gross receipts from these sales made in the course of that business in the unincorporated 
areas of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, and at the rate of 3.0% of the gross receipts 
from these sales made in the course of that business in a municipality located in the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois.     
 
 
 



2 
 

(b) The imposition of this tax is in accordance with the provisions of Section 5-1006.8 of 
the Illinois Counties Code (55 ILCS 5/5-1006.8). 
 
2. Collection of tax by retailers. 
(a) The tax imposed by this Ordinance shall be remitted by such retailer to the Illinois 
Department of Revenue (Department).  Any tax required to be collected pursuant to or as 
authorized by this Ordinance and any such tax collected by such retailer and required to 
be remitted to the Department shall constitute a debt owed by the retailer to the State. 
Retailers may reimburse themselves for their seller's tax liability hereunder by separately 
stating that tax as an additional charge, which charge may be stated in combination, in a 
single amount, with any State tax that sellers are required to collect.  
 
(b) The taxes hereby imposed, and all civil penalties that may be assessed as an 
incident thereto, shall be collected and enforced by the Department. The Department shall 
have full power to administer and enforce the provisions of this article. 
 
3. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance, or the application of any provision of 
this Ordinance, is held unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such occurrence shall not 
affect other provisions of this Ordinance, or their application, that can be given effect 
without the unconstitutional or invalid provision or its application.  Each unconstitutional 
or invalid provision, or application of such provision, is severable, unless otherwise 
provided by this Ordinance. 
 
4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval and publication as required by law, provided, however, that the tax 
provided for herein shall take effect for all sales on or after the first day of January, 2020.  
Copies of this Ordinance shall be certified and sent to the Illinois Department of 
Revenue. 
 
SECTION 3.  The Winnebago County Clerk is hereby directed to send a certified 
copy of this Ordinance immediately upon its passage to the Illinois Department of 
Revenue. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this abatement to the Winnebago 
County Treasurer, County Clerk, County Administrator, County Auditor, and County 
Planning and Economic Development Director. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
Economic Development Committee 

TO ADOPT     TO NOT ADOPT 

_____________________________  __________________________________ 
Jas Bilich, Chairman      Jas Bilich, Chairman 
        
______________________________ __________________________________  
Paul Arena     Paul Arena 
 
______________________________ __________________________________ 
John Butitta     John Butitta 
 
______________________________ __________________________________ 
Jean Crosby     Jean Crosby 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Dan Fellars     Dan Fellars  
 
______________________________ ___________________________________  
Burt Gerl     Burt Gerl 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Tim Nabors, Jr. Tim Nabors, Jr. 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd Dorothy Redd 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Fred Wescott Fred Wescott 
  

APPROVED this _____ day of __________________________, 2019, by the 
County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
Attested by:      of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
Ayes: ______  Nays: ______  Absent: ____ 







ORDINANCE 
 of the 
 
 COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 SUBMITTED BY:  Economic Development Committee 
  

19 OR _____ 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
TO PROVIDE FOR VIDEO GAMING AS ALLOWED BY THE ILLINOIS VIDEO 

GAMING ACT 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, on July 13, 2009, the Video Gaming Act (230 ILCS 40/1 et seq.) (the 
"Act") was enacted, allowing certain licensed retail establishments to conduct video gaming; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago has adopted a Code of Ordinances with Chapter 
6, Article III that regulates Video Gaming Devices located within Winnebago County, Illinois; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act has been amended from time to time to increase to six (6) the 
number of video gaming terminals an entity that is operating in compliance with the Video 
Gaming Act (230 ILCS 40/1, 40/25) may operate; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act was further amended to increase to ten (10) the number of video 
gaming terminals a licensed large truck stop as defined in the Illinois Video Gaming Act 230 
ILCS 40/1, et seq. may operate; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the revenue from gaming terminals fees assists the County's financial 
situation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 6-66(3)(b) currently states as follows: 
 

Pays to the county an annual fee of $25.00 for each video gaming terminal 
upon the premises, up to a maximum of five video gaming terminal per 
licensed premises. 

   
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago desires to receive the maximum amount of 
revenue allowed it from video gaming devices located in the Winnebago County;  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 6, Section 66(b) is amended to state as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

Pays to the county an annual fee equal to $25.00 or the maximum fee 
allowed for each video gaming terminal on the licensed premises pursuant 
to the Illinois Video Gaming Act 230 ILCS 40/5 et seq. for up to the 
maximum number of video gaming terminals the licensee is permitted to 
operate on the premises of the establishment as such establishment is 
defined by the Illinois Video Gaming Act 230 ILCS 40/5 et seq. (i.e. 
licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed 
veterans establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, large truck stop).   

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 

authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Ordinance to the County Administrator, 
Director of the Regional Planning and Economic Development Department, the Treasurer, the 
County Clerk,  and the State’s Attorney’s Office, Civil Division. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 3 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JAS BILICH, CHAIRMAN  JAS BILICH, CHAIRMAN 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

DAN FELLARS  DAN FELLARS 

BURT GERL  BURT GERL 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2019. 
 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 











40/65. Fees, IL ST CH 230 § 40/65

 © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 1

West's Smith-Hurd Illinois Compiled Statutes Annotated
Chapter 230. Gaming

Act 40. Video Gaming Act

230 ILCS 40/65

40/65. Fees

Effective: July 13, 2009
Currentness

§ 65. Fees. A non-home rule unit of government may not impose any fee for the operation of a video gaming terminal in excess
of $25 per year.

Credits
P.A. 96-34, § 65, eff. July 13, 2009.

230 I.L.C.S. 40/65, IL ST CH 230 § 40/65
Current through P.A. 101-66. Some statute sections may be more current, see credits for details.

End of Document © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.

http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/IllinoisStatutesCourtRules?transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/IllinoisStatutesCourtRules?guid=N735695151CAA4B53AB7444CC1BBFC9F3&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/IllinoisStatutesCourtRules?guid=N4B5795A0724311DEAFDEBDA78E040D7A&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IB50063E071-6911DE8FAF9-098675D2C1D)&originatingDoc=N285C99D0764211DEBE619C228A428AB7&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)


40/25. Restriction of licensees, IL ST CH 230 § 40/25

 © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 1

West's Smith-Hurd Illinois Compiled Statutes Annotated
Chapter 230. Gaming

Act 40. Video Gaming Act

230 ILCS 40/25

40/25. Restriction of licensees

Effective: June 28, 2019
Currentness

§ 25. Restriction of licensees.

(a) Manufacturer. A person may not be licensed as a manufacturer of a video gaming terminal in Illinois unless the person has
a valid manufacturer's license issued under this Act. A manufacturer may only sell video gaming terminals for use in Illinois
to persons having a valid distributor's license.

(b) Distributor. A person may not sell, distribute, or lease or market a video gaming terminal in Illinois unless the person has a
valid distributor's license issued under this Act. A distributor may only sell video gaming terminals for use in Illinois to persons
having a valid distributor's or terminal operator's license.

(c) Terminal operator. A person may not own, maintain, or place a video gaming terminal unless he has a valid terminal
operator's license issued under this Act. A terminal operator may only place video gaming terminals for use in Illinois in licensed
establishments, licensed truck stop establishments, licensed large truck stop establishments, licensed fraternal establishments,
and licensed veterans establishments. No terminal operator may give anything of value, including but not limited to a loan or
financing arrangement, to a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed large truck stop establishment,
licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment as any incentive or inducement to locate video terminals in
that establishment. Of the after-tax profits from a video gaming terminal, 50% shall be paid to the terminal operator and 50%
shall be paid to the licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed large truck stop establishment, licensed
fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment, notwithstanding any agreement to the contrary. A video terminal
operator that violates one or more requirements of this subsection is guilty of a Class 4 felony and is subject to termination
of his or her license by the Board.

(d) Licensed technician. A person may not service, maintain, or repair a video gaming terminal in this State unless he or she
(1) has a valid technician's license issued under this Act, (2) is a terminal operator, or (3) is employed by a terminal operator,
distributor, or manufacturer.

(d-5) Licensed terminal handler. No person, including, but not limited to, an employee or independent contractor working for
a manufacturer, distributor, supplier, technician, or terminal operator licensed pursuant to this Act, shall have possession or
control of a video gaming terminal, or access to the inner workings of a video gaming terminal, unless that person possesses
a valid terminal handler's license issued under this Act.

http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/IllinoisStatutesCourtRules?transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/IllinoisStatutesCourtRules?guid=N735695151CAA4B53AB7444CC1BBFC9F3&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/IllinoisStatutesCourtRules?guid=N4B5795A0724311DEAFDEBDA78E040D7A&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0


40/25. Restriction of licensees, IL ST CH 230 § 40/25

 © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 2

(e) Licensed establishment. No video gaming terminal may be placed in any licensed establishment, licensed veterans
establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed large truck stop establishment, or licensed fraternal establishment
unless the owner or agent of the owner of the licensed establishment, licensed veterans establishment, licensed truck stop
establishment, licensed large truck stop establishment, or licensed fraternal establishment has entered into a written use
agreement with the terminal operator for placement of the terminals. A copy of the use agreement shall be on file in the terminal
operator's place of business and available for inspection by individuals authorized by the Board. A licensed establishment,
licensed truck stop establishment, licensed veterans establishment, or licensed fraternal establishment may operate up to 6 video
gaming terminals on its premises at any time. A licensed large truck stop establishment may operate up to 10 video gaming
terminals on its premises at any time.

(f) (Blank).

(g) Financial interest restrictions. As used in this Act, “substantial interest” in a partnership, a corporation, an organization, an
association, a business, or a limited liability company means:

(A) When, with respect to a sole proprietorship, an individual or his or her spouse owns, operates, manages, or conducts,
directly or indirectly, the organization, association, or business, or any part thereof; or

(B) When, with respect to a partnership, the individual or his or her spouse shares in any of the profits, or potential profits,
of the partnership activities; or

(C) When, with respect to a corporation, an individual or his or her spouse is an officer or director, or the individual or his or
her spouse is a holder, directly or beneficially, of 5% or more of any class of stock of the corporation; or

(D) When, with respect to an organization not covered in (A), (B) or (C) above, an individual or his or her spouse is an officer
or manages the business affairs, or the individual or his or her spouse is the owner of or otherwise controls 10% or more
of the assets of the organization; or

(E) When an individual or his or her spouse furnishes 5% or more of the capital, whether in cash, goods, or services, for the
operation of any business, association, or organization during any calendar year; or

(F) When, with respect to a limited liability company, an individual or his or her spouse is a member, or the individual or his
or her spouse is a holder, directly or beneficially, of 5% or more of the membership interest of the limited liability company.

For purposes of this subsection (g), “individual” includes all individuals or their spouses whose combined interest would qualify
as a substantial interest under this subsection (g) and whose activities with respect to an organization, association, or business
are so closely aligned or coordinated as to constitute the activities of a single entity.

(h) Location restriction. A licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed large truck stop establishment,
licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment that is (i) located within 1,000 feet of a facility operated by
an organization licensee licensed under the Illinois Horse Racing Act of 1975 or the home dock of a riverboat licensed under
the Illinois Gambling Act or (ii) located within 100 feet of a school or a place of worship under the Religious Corporation



40/25. Restriction of licensees, IL ST CH 230 § 40/25

 © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 3

Act, is ineligible to operate a video gaming terminal. The location restrictions in this subsection (h) do not apply if (A) a
facility operated by an organization licensee, a school, or a place of worship moves to or is established within the restricted
area after a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed large truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal
establishment, or licensed veterans establishment becomes licensed under this Act or (B) a school or place of worship moves
to or is established within the restricted area after a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed large
truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment obtains its original liquor license.
For the purpose of this subsection, “school” means an elementary or secondary public school, or an elementary or secondary
private school registered with or recognized by the State Board of Education.

Notwithstanding the provisions of this subsection (h), the Board may waive the requirement that a licensed establishment,
licensed truck stop establishment, licensed large truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans
establishment not be located within 1,000 feet from a facility operated by an organization licensee licensed under the Illinois
Horse Racing Act of 1975 or the home dock of a riverboat licensed under the Illinois Gambling Act. The Board shall not
grant such waiver if there is any common ownership or control, shared business activity, or contractual arrangement of any
type between the establishment and the organization licensee or owners licensee of a riverboat. The Board shall adopt rules to
implement the provisions of this paragraph.

(h-5) Restrictions on licenses in malls. The Board shall not grant an application to become a licensed video gaming location
if the Board determines that granting the application would more likely than not cause a terminal operator, individually or in
combination with other terminal operators, licensed video gaming location, or other person or entity, to operate the video gaming
terminals in 2 or more licensed video gaming locations as a single video gaming operation.

(1) In making determinations under this subsection (h-5), factors to be considered by the Board shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

(A) the physical aspects of the location;

(B) the ownership, control, or management of the location;

(C) any arrangements, understandings, or agreements, written or otherwise, among or involving any persons or entities
that involve the conducting of any video gaming business or the sharing of costs or revenues; and

(D) the manner in which any terminal operator or other related entity markets, advertises, or otherwise describes any
location or locations to any other person or entity or to the public.

(2) The Board shall presume, subject to rebuttal, that the granting of an application to become a licensed video gaming
location within a mall will cause a terminal operator, individually or in combination with other persons or entities, to operate
the video gaming terminals in 2 or more licensed video gaming locations as a single video gaming operation if the Board
determines that granting the license would create a local concentration of licensed video gaming locations.

For the purposes of this subsection (h-5):

“Mall” means a building, or adjoining or connected buildings, containing 4 or more separate locations.



40/25. Restriction of licensees, IL ST CH 230 § 40/25

 © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 4

“Video gaming operation” means the conducting of video gaming and all related activities.

“Location” means a space within a mall containing a separate business, a place for a separate business, or a place subject to
a separate leasing arrangement by the mall owner.

“Licensed video gaming location” means a licensed establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, licensed veterans
establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, or licensed large truck stop.

“Local concentration of licensed video gaming locations” means that the combined number of licensed video gaming locations
within a mall exceed half of the separate locations within the mall.

(i) Undue economic concentration. In addition to considering all other requirements under this Act, in deciding whether to
approve the operation of video gaming terminals by a terminal operator in a location, the Board shall consider the impact of any
economic concentration of such operation of video gaming terminals. The Board shall not allow a terminal operator to operate
video gaming terminals if the Board determines such operation will result in undue economic concentration. For purposes of
this Section, “undue economic concentration” means that a terminal operator would have such actual or potential influence over
video gaming terminals in Illinois as to:

(1) substantially impede or suppress competition among terminal operators;

(2) adversely impact the economic stability of the video gaming industry in Illinois; or

(3) negatively impact the purposes of the Video Gaming Act.

The Board shall adopt rules concerning undue economic concentration with respect to the operation of video gaming terminals
in Illinois. The rules shall include, but not be limited to, (i) limitations on the number of video gaming terminals operated by
any terminal operator within a defined geographic radius and (ii) guidelines on the discontinuation of operation of any such
video gaming terminals the Board determines will cause undue economic concentration.

(j) The provisions of the Illinois Antitrust Act are fully and equally applicable to the activities of any licensee under this Act.

Credits
P.A. 96-34, § 25, eff. July 13, 2009. Amended by P.A. 96-37, § 60-5, eff. July 13, 2009; P.A. 96-38, § 25, eff. July 13, 2009;
P.A. 96-1000, § 490, eff. July 2, 2010; P.A. 96-1410, § 5, eff. July 30, 2010; P.A. 96-1479, § 5, eff. Aug. 23, 2010; P.A. 97-333,
§ 440, eff. Aug. 12, 2011; P.A. 98-31, § 5, eff. June 24, 2013; P.A. 98-77, § 5, eff. July 15, 2013; P.A. 98-112, § 5, eff. July 26,
2013; P.A. 98-756, § 530, eff. July 16, 2014; P.A. 101-31, § 35-60, eff. June 28, 2019.

230 I.L.C.S. 40/25, IL ST CH 230 § 40/25
Current through P.A. 101-66. Some statute sections may be more current, see credits for details.

End of Document © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.

http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IB50063E071-6911DE8FAF9-098675D2C1D)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IF147D4B071-8111DEA0C3A-F1F71B30D46)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(I2DBC59B071-7E11DE86E3F-CA020D1A360)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IAF1512208A-9811DFABC9E-A2AD3863890)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(I779CBA009F-D311DF8D92F-5C646F12B3A)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(I351DC030B0-6211DFB5F1A-D323A09E6E2)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IE196F090CA-6811E0A41CE-27D86E3D328)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IE196F090CA-6811E0A41CE-27D86E3D328)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IF3E5FEA0E2-C411E2A494B-9ED6330857D)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IC0B73990EF-5811E288C4D-BC66FF48FA3)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IE7FD3920F8-D911E2A1A8D-8F8E8A9E944)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IE7FD3920F8-D911E2A1A8D-8F8E8A9E944)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(IE75E8400F8-7511E39C2FB-AA982EED84A)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&pubNum=1077005&cite=UUID(I470EB71089-4B11E9B5DBD-9BFB4D68E7A)&originatingDoc=NAADA75309DF611E9B24AA31576C65E13&refType=SL&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)


SPONSORED BY:  JAS BILICH 
RESOLUTION 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 
2019 CR_______ 

 
RESOLUTION ABATING PROPERTY TAXES FOR TEN (10) YEARS ON REAL 

ESTATE COMMONLY KNOWN AS THE MAGIC WATERS WATERPARK 
LOCATED AT 7820 NORTH CHERRYVALE BOULEVARD, CHERRY VALLEY, 
ILLINOIS OWNED BY ROCKFORD PARK DISTRICT (“RPD”) AND LEGALLY 

DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 35 ILCS 200/18-165(a)(7), the County of Winnebago 
(“COUNTY”) may order the County Clerk to abate any portion of its taxes on property located in the 
COUNTY that is subject to a leasehold assessment under Section 9-195 of the Illinois Property Tax 
Code, 35 ILCS 200/9-195, and is used exclusively for recreational facilities or for parking lots used 
exclusively for those facilities; and 

WHEREAS, such abatement shall not exceed a period of ten years; and 

WHEREAS, the total aggregate amount of abated taxes for all taxing districts within 
Winnebago County may not exceed $4,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2018, the COUNTY approved an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between RPD, the COUNTY and other taxing districts to abate the taxes on the 
recreational facility known as Magic Waters Waterpark (“MAGIC WATERS”) on property that is 
more specifically described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein; and 

WHEREAS, in the past, MAGIC WATERS was owned and operated by RPD and was 
exempt from real estate taxes pursuant to Section 15-105(b) of the Illinois Property Tax Code, 35 
ILCS 200/15-105(b), and as a result, the COUNTY was not receiving any real estate taxes from the 
ownership or operation of MAGIC WATERS; and  

WHEREAS, RPD has entered into a Lease with SIX FLAGS MW, LLC (“SIX FLAGS”) 
pursuant to which RPD agreed to lease MAGIC WATERS for ten (10) years (with three, ten (10) 
year options to renew) in exchange for specified rent and obligations by SIX FLAGS to make certain 
investments in MAGIC WATERS during the term of the Lease (“Lease”); and 

WHEREAS, the parties acknowledge that the leasehold interest and appurtenances created as 
a result of the Lease might be subject to levy of real estate tax pursuant to Section 9-195 of the 
Illinois Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/9-195, or otherwise under laws in effect from time-to-time; 
and  

WHEREAS, the imposition of real estate taxes would make the leasehold arrangement 
financially impractical for RPD and SIX FLAGS; and  

WHEREAS, as a result, RPD, the COUNTY, and other taxing districts entered into the 
Intergovernmental Agreement to provide for the abatement of any real estate taxes which may be 
assessed against the property as the consummation of the Lease will bring benefit to the community 



 
 2 

in the form of investments in MAGIC WATERS, greater operational efficiencies, potentially 
expanded uses, and increased marking potential within the SIX FLAGS brand.   

NOW, THEREFORE, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, hereby 
orders the Winnebago County Clerk to abate the County of Winnebago’s share of the real estate 
taxes that may be levied against the property identified in Exhibit A hereto and commonly known as 
MAGIC WATERS located at 7820 North Cherryvale Boulevard, Cherry Valley, Illinois (the 
“Property”) as follows:   

1. The COUNTY hereby abates 100% of all real estate taxes levied against SIX FLAGS 
leasehold interest and appurtenances (i) in MAGIC WATERS as it currently exists; and (ii) in any 
development thereof during the term of the abatement that is either directly related to or necessary 
for the operation of MAGIC WATERS.   

2. The COUNTY fully abates all such real estate taxes until the first to occur of (i) ten 
(10) years from the Commencement Date of the Lease, effectively levy years 2019-2028; or (ii) the 
termination of the Lease.  

3. For avoidance of doubt, the portion of any leasehold interest that relates to any 
commercial or retail developments that are not directly related to or necessary for the operation of 
MAGIC WATERS and are constructed on any land that is undeveloped as of the Commencement 
Date under the Lease is not included within the scope of the real estate taxes being abated hereto in 
accordance with this abatement.   

4. A.  Pursuant to Section 5 of the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, and the 
Intergovernmental Agreement entered into between RPD, the COUNTY,  and other taxing districts, 
the COUNTY hereby transfers to the Park District Board of Commissioners the authority to extend 
the abatement described in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of this Resolution upon the expiration of 10 years  if 
the Lease (as such may be amended or modified from time-to-time) is still in effect; provided, 
however, that the authority transferred hereunder shall not permit any extension that, together with 
the original abatement described in Paragraphs 1 and 2 hereof extends (i) beyond the expiration or 
termination of the Lease; or (ii) longer than the period then permitted by applicable law; or (iii) more 
than twenty (20) years from the beginning of the original abatement described in Paragraphs 1 and 2 
of this Resolution.   

B.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall transfer to the 
Park District Board of Commissioners, the COUNTY’s authority to abate any real estate taxes 
arising from (directly or indirectly) any leasehold interest or any commercial or retail developments 
that are not directly related to or necessary for the operation of MAGIC WATERS and are 
constructed on any land that is undeveloped as of the Commencement Date under the Lease.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event the Lease between RPD and SIX FLAGS 
terminates for any reason before the abatement period provided for herein expires, then the 
abatement shall cease.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective immediately. 



 
 3 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this abatement to the Winnebago County Clerk, Winnebago 
County Administrator, and Winnebago County Planning and Economic Development Director. 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JAS BILICH, CHAIRMAN  JAS BILICH, CHAIRMAN 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

DAN FELLARS  DAN FELLARS 

BURT GERL  BURT GERL 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2019. 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 



 
 4 

EXHIBIT A 

PINS 
12-35-276-003 
12-35-252-009 
12-35-426-001 
12-35-426-002 
 
Legal Description 
Part of the East Half (1/2) of Section 35, Township 44 North, Range 2 East of the Third {3rd) Principal 
Meridian, bounded and described as follows, to-wit: Beginning at the Southwest corner of the East Half (1/2) 
of the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of said Section 35; thence North 4 degrees 34' 34" West, 401.32 feet; thence 
North 18 degrees 53' 16" West, 197.17 feet; thence North 71 degrees 6' 44" East, 355.76 feet; thence South 
83 degrees 28' 20" East, 87.27 feet; thence North 73 degrees 31' 7" East, 600.08 feet, to the West line of 
the property conveyed by Fred A. and Emma E. Davis to the Illinois State Toll Highway Commission, 
recorded in Book 1037 of Deeds on Page 37 4 in the Recorder's Office of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois; thence South 30 degrees 15' 52" East, 244.96 feet along the West line of said property conveyed to 
the Illinois State Toll Highway Commission; thence South 2 degrees 45' 23" West, 302.33 feet along said 
West line; thence South 22 degrees 55' 56" West, 520.32 feet along said West line; thence North 67 
degrees 4' 4" West, 710.13 feet; thence South 46 degrees 43' 18" West, 212.99 feet to the place of 
beginning; situated in the County of Winnebago and the State of Illinois, together with a non-exclusive 
Perpetual Easement for ingress and egress over the following described premises: Part of the Northeast 
Quarter (1/4) of Section 35, Township 44 North, Range 2 East of the Third (3rd) Principal Meridian, bounded 
and described as follows, to-wit: Commencing at the Southwest corner of the East Half (1/2) of the 
Northeast Quarter (1/4) of said Section 35; thence North 4 degrees 34' 34" West, Four Hundred One and 
Thirty-two Hundredths (401.32) feet; thence North 18 degrees 53' 16" West, One Hundred Ninety-seven 
and Seventeen Hundredths (197.17) feet to the place of beginning; thence South 71 degrees 6' 44" West, 
Sixty-four and Nine Hundredths (64.09) feet to a point of curvature with a circular curve to the right having a 
radius of One Thousand Forty and No Hundredths (1040.00) feet; thence Southwesterly along said circular 
curve to the right, to a point of tangency and the intersection with its chord bearing South 80 degrees 32' 26" 
West, Three Hundred Forty and Seventy-four Hundredths (340.74) feet; thence South 89 degrees 58' 9" 
West, Seven Hundred Eighty-five and Twenty Hundredths {785.20) feet to the East Right-of-Way line of Bell 
School Road; thence North 1 degrees 6' 28" East, Eighty and Two Hundredths (80.02) feet along said East 
right-of-way line; thence North 89 degrees 58' 9" East, Seven Hundred Eighty-three and Sixty-one 
Hundredths {783.61) feet to a point of curvature with a circular curve to the left having a radius of Nine 
Hundred Sixty and No Hundredths (960.00 feet; thence Northeasterly along said circular curve to the left to 
a point of tangency and the intersection with its chord bearing North 80 degrees 32' 26" East, Three 
Hundred Fourteen and Fifty-three Hundredths (314.53) feet; thence North 71 degrees 6' 44" East. Five 
Hundred and Thirty Hundredths (500.30) feet; thence South 18 degrees 53' 16" East, Forty and No 
Hundredths (40.00) feet to a point of curvature with a circular curve to the right having a radius of One 
Thousand Eight Hundred Forty-four and Seventy-two Hundredths (1844.72) feet; thence Southeasterly 
along said circular curve to the right, to the intersection with its chord bearing South 17 degrees 41' 5" East, 
Seventy-seven and Forty-seven Hundredths (77.47) feet; thence North 83 degrees 28' 20" West, 
Eighty-seven and Twenty-seven Hundredths (87.27) feet; thence South 71 degrees 6' 44" West, Three 
Hundred Fifty-five and Seventy-six Hundredths (355.76) feet to the place of beginning. 
 
ALSO, part of the East Half (1 /2) of Section 35, Township 44 North, Range 2 East of the Third (3rd) Principal 
Meridian, bounded and described as follows, to-wit: Beginning at the Southwest corner of the East Half (1 /2) 
of the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of said Section 35; thence North 46 degrees 43' 18" East, Two Hundred 
Twelve and Ninety-nine Hundredths (212.99) feet; thence South 67 degrees 4' 4" East, Seven Hundred Ten 
and Thirteen Hundredths (710.13) feet to the West line of the property conveyed by Fred A. and Emma E. 
Davis to the Illinois State Toll Highway Commission, recorded in Book 1037 of Deeds on Page 374 in the 
Recorder's Office of Winnebago County, State of Illinois; thence South 22 degrees 55' 56" West One 
Thousand Two Hundred Ninety-eight and No Hundredths {1298.00) feet along the West line of said property 
conveyed to the Illinois State Toll Highway Commission, to the South line of the Northeast Quarter (1 /4) of 
the Southeast Quarter (1/4) of said Section 35; thence South 89 degrees 48' 18" West, Three Hundred 
Thirty-one and Sixty-three Hundredths (331.63) feet along said South line to the West line of the East Half 
( 1 /2) of said Southeast Quarter (1 /4); thence North 1 degrees 13' 18" East, One Thousand Three Hundred 
Twenty-seven and Fifty-three Hundredths (1327.53) feet along said West line, being the East line of Plat No. 
3 of Cherry Crest, being a Subdivision of part of the West Half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (1/4) of said 
Section 35, the Plat of which is recorded in Book 32 of Plats on Page 43 in said Recorder's Office, and the 
East line of Plat No. 2 of Cherry Crest, being a Subdivision of part of the West Half (1/2) of the Southeast 



 
 5 

Quarter (1/4) of said Section 35, the Plat of which is recorded in Book 26 of Plats on Page 113 in said 
Recorder's Office to the place of beginning; situated in the County of Winnebago and State of Illinois. 
 
ALSO, part of the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of Section 35, Township 44 North, Range 2 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian, bounded and described as follows, to-wit: Commencing at the Northeast corner of Lot 
Nine (9), as designated upon Plat No. 2 of Cherry Crest Subdivision, being a Subdivision of part of the West 
Half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (1/4) of Section 35, Township 44 North, Range 2 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian, the Plat of which Subdivision is recorded in Book 26 of Plats on Page 113 in the 
Recorder's Office of Winnebago County, Illinois, said point of commencement also being the Southwest 
corner of the East Half (1/2) of the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of said Section; thence North 04 degrees 34' 34" 
West, 401.32 feet; thence North 18 degrees 53' 16" West, 197.17 feet to the Northwest corner of premises 
conveyed to the Rockford Park District, a Municipal Corporation by Deed recorded in Microfilm No. 
9009-2043 in said Recorder's Office and to the point of beginning for the following described parcel; thence 
South 16 degrees 32' 35" West, 320.68 feet; thence South 82 degrees 08' 24" West, 215.00 feet; thence 
North 13 degrees 18' 42" West, 267.73 feet; thence North 01 degrees 15' 53" East, 378.41 feet; thence 
North 89 degrees 58' 09" East, 163.87 feet; thence North 70 degrees 57' 02" East, 442.25 feet; thence 
South 18 degrees 53' 16" East, 50.00 feet; thence North 66 degrees 21' 37" East, 80.28 feet; thence South 
18 degrees 53' 16" East, 266.53 feet; thence Southeasterly along a circular curve to the right having a 
radius of 1844.72 feet and whose center lies to the West, an arc distance of 77.48 feet to its intersection 
with the Northerly line of said premises so conveyed to the Rockford Park District as aforesaid (the chord 
across the last described circular curve course lies South 17 degrees 24' 31" East, 77.48 feet); thence North 
83 degrees 28' 20" West, along the Northerly line of said premises so conveyed to the Rockford Park District 
as aforesaid, a distance of 87.27 feet; thence South 71 degrees 06' 44" West, along the Northerly line of 
said premises so conveyed to the Rockford Park District as aforesaid, a distance of 355.78 feet to the point 
of beginning; situated in the County of Winnebago and the State of Illinois. 
 
ALSO, part of the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of Section 35, Township 44 North, Range 2 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian, bounded and described as follows, to-wit: Beginning at the Northeast corner of Lot Nine 
{9) as designated upon Plat No. 2 of Cherry Crest Subdivision, being a Subdivision of part of the West Half 
(1 /2) of the Southeast Quarter (1 /4) of Section 35, Township 44 North, Range 2 East of the Third Principal 
Meridian, the Plat of which Subdivision is recorded in Book 26 of Plats on Page 113 in the Recorder's Office 
of Winnebago County, Illinois, said point of beginning also being the Southwest corner of the East Half (1/2) 
of the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of said Section; thence South 89 degrees 58' 09" West along the South line of 
the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of said Section 35, a distance of 400.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 01' 51" 
West, 250.00 feet; thence North 82 degrees 08' 24" East, 215.00 feet; thence North 16 degrees 32' 35" 
East, 320.68 feet to the Northwest corner of premises conveyed to the Rockford Park District, a Municipal 
Corporation by Deed recorded in Microfilm No. 9009-2043 in said Recorder's Office; thence South 18 
degrees 53' 16" East, 197.17 feet; thence South 04 degrees 34' 34" East, 401.32 feet to the point of 
beginning (the last two previous calls being along the Westerly lines of said premises so conveyed to the 
Rockford Park District as aforesaid); situated in the County of Winnebago and State of Illinois. 

































Taxing Bodies Dollar Amount Percent of Tax Rate Percent of Total

Winnebago County $5,193.15 1.0587% 8.47%

Forest Preserve $579.80 0.1182% 0.95%

Rockford Township $709.29 0.1446% 1.16%

Cherry Valley Fire $5,033.24 1.0261% 8.21%

Rockford Park District $5,577.71 1.1371% 9.10%

Rock River Water Rec $1,000.66 0.2040% 1.63%

Cherry Valley Library $1,949.33 0.3974% 3.18%

Greater Rockford Airport $540.55 0.1102% 0.88%

Rockford School District 205 $37,522.89 7.6496% 61.20%

Community Colllege 511 $2,478.60 0.5053% 4.04%

Rockford Twsp Road $724.99 0.1478% 1.18%

Total $61,310.22 12.4990% 100.00%

Proposed Estimated Leasehold Valuation for Magic Waters
PIN#s 12-35-426-002 & 12-35-276-003

The value for the property comes in at $1,471,709, which would generate a tax bill (if taxed) of 

just over $61,000 per year based on the assessed value of $490,521 (1/3 of the market value) 

and the most recent tax rate of 12.4990%.      

$1,471,709 market value x 0.3333 = $490,521 assessed value

$490,521 assessed value x 0.124990 tax rate = $61,310.22 projected revenue

Winnebago County

8.47%
Forest Preserve

0.95%
Rockford Township

1.16%

Cherry Valley Fire

8.21%Rockford Park 

District

9.10% Rock River Water Rec

1.63%

Cherry Valley Library

3.18%

Greater Rockford Airport

0.88%

Rockford 

School 

District 

205

61.20%

Community 

Colllege 511

4.04%

Rockford 

Twsp 

Road

1.18%

Projected

Tax Revenue 

Breakdown



 

PERSONNEL & 
POLICIES 

COMMITTEE 
 































 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 



 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 COMMITTEE 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: October 24, 2019 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 
1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission 

the following: 
 

a. Federal Register / Vol. 84, No. 195 / Tuesday, October 8, 2019 / Notices – 53767. 
 
b. Federal Register / Vol. 84, No. 195 / Tuesday, October 8, 2019 / Notices – 53777. 
 
c. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Clinton Power 

Station, Unit No. 1; Dresden Nuclear Power Station, Units 2 and 3; James A. 
Fitzpatrick Nuclear Power Plant; LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2; and Quad 
Cities Nuclear Power Station, Units 1 and 2- Issuance of Amendments to Eliminate 
Second Completion Times From Technical Specifications (EPID L-2018-LLA-0297).  

 
d. Exelon Generation Company, LLC – Acceptance of Request to Use 2013 Edition of 

ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code (EPID L-2019LLR-0080). 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communication, locally known as 
Spectrum, letters regarding upcoming changes effective on or after November 12, 2019.  

 
 a. County of Winnebago 
 b. Township of Harlem 
 c. Township of Rockton 
 d. Township of Roscoe 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

3. County Clerk Gummow received from ComEd a letter regarding their intent to perform 
vegetation management activities on distribution circuits in our area within the next few 
months. 

 
4. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago County 

Treasurer the Investment Report as of October 1, 2019.     
        

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 


























	Agenda
	Chairman's Report
	Administrator's Report
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Edwin Herrman - Executive Summary
	Edwin Herrman - Letter and Resume
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Contract with Region 1 Planning Council to Act as County of Winnebago's Agent in the Operation of Delinquent Tax Program
	Ordinance Amending Chapter 70 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances Related to Waste Haulers and Solid Waste to be laid over
	Resolution Authorizing the Establishment of Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board
	Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute Agreement with National Able Network
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Authorizing an Increase in the Salary of the Winnebago County Public Defender
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for the Operation and Funding of the Winnebago County Emergency Telephone System
	Resolution Authorizing the Settlement of Pending Litigation
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development
	Ordinance Amending Winnebago Co Code of Ordinances by the Addition of Article VI to Chapter 78, Imposing a Co Cannabis Retailer's Occupation Tax to be laid over
	Ordinance Amending the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances to Provide for Video Gaming as allowed by the Illinios Video Gaming Act
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Intergovernmental Agreement with the Rockford Park District for Tax Abatement for Magic Waters Leasehold
	Personnel & Policies Committee
	Resolution Fixing County Holiday Schedule for 2020
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Rockford for Animal Services
	Resolution to Adopt the Annual 1,000 Hour Standard for IMRF Participation 
	Resolution to Approve Truck Purchase for River Bluff Nursing Home
	Public Works Committee
	Public Safety Committee
	Announcements & Communications
	Consent Agenda
	ADP72E7.tmp
	2PndP REVISED
	AGENDA
	1. Call to Order  Chairman Frank Haney
	2. Agenda Updates  Chairman Frank Haney
	3. Roll Call Clerk Lori Gummow
	4. Invocation Board Member John Butitta
	5. Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation
	6. Public Comment Registered Speakers
	Members of the public may address the Board by submitting their request no later than 2 hours prior to the start of the meeting. Contact 30TUwww.wincoil.usU30T or (815) 319-4225 for guidelines.
	7. Board Member Correspondence Board Members
	8. Chairman’s Report Chairman Frank Haney
	 Trustee Program Agent
	 Barber Colman/Alternative location for Advanced Technology Center
	 Thank you to Caucus Chairs
	 Disclosure
	1. County designee to WINGIS Board: Chris Dornbush (on-going)
	2. County designee to RMAP Board: Carlos Molina (replacing Joe Vanderwerff)
	3. RACVB County Board Liaison: Dan Fellars
	4. RACVB County Staff Designee: Tiana McCall (on-going)
	9. County Administrator’s Report Interim County Administrator Steve Chapman
	10. Department Head Updates……………………………………………………………………Department Heads
	11. Unfinished Business Chairman Frank Haney
	A. 911 Update
	B. Capital Improvement Plan Update
	C. Closed session committee minutes: May 2
	D. Cherry Valley TIF Report
	12. New Business………………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Frank Haney
	A. Recommendation on Project E - $150,000 from Host Fees. Carry-over from FY ’19 (Refer for Economic Development Committee)
	B. Board Appointment, Otter Creek Lake Utility District
	1. Reappoint Edwin Herrman, Davis, IL, October 2019-October 2024
	(Resume attached)
	13. Standing Committee Reports Chairman Frank Haney
	3. Ordinance Amending Chapter 70 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances Related to Waste Haulers and Solid Waste to be laid over
	4. Resolution Authorizing the Establishment of Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board
	5. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute Agreement with National Able Network





